
i

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE,
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX

Telephone:  01730 266551
Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 13 July 2017

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership:      Councillor I Thomas (Chairman)

Councillors R Ayer (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, K Budden, K Carter, 
F Cowper, N Drew, D Evans, A Glass, M Johnson, A Joy, C Louisson, 
R Mocatta, D Orme, D Phillips, S Pond, S Schillemore and A Williams

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS)

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: Wednesday, 5 July 2017

Contact Officer: James Harris 01730 234098
Email:  james.harris@easthants.gov.uk

Working in Partnership



ii

Page Nos
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Confirmation of Minutes  

Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes.

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2017, circulated under 
separate cover.

3. Chairman's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter.

Matters for Decision

5. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters  

6. Future Items  9 - 10

7. Report of the Head of Planning  

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items

Section I

There are no Section I items within this agenda.

Section II

There are no Section II items within this agenda.



iii

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items

Section I

8.(i)  SDNP/16/03778/FUL - 14 /14a Chapel Street, Petersfield, 
Hampshire, GU32 3DP  
Mr Michael Goldmeier & Webber Holdings Ltd

Demolition of existing single storey rear extension, conversion of 
existing ground floor offices to three retail units, and conversion and 
extension of upper floors to provide six residential units - amended 
proposal, February 2017.

11 - 30

8.(ii)  SDNP/16/06316/FUL - The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, Alton, 
Hampshire, GU34 4PB  
Mr T Stewart

Single storey side and rear extensions to public house and three two 
storey dwellings with three associated car ports and new access, and 
with associated landscaping, parking and refuse storage (amended 
access details received 2 March 2017) (Further drawings and viability 
study received 30 March 2017)  Further access arrangement drawing 
received 12 April 2017.

31 - 54

Section II

There are no Section II items within this agenda.



iv



v

Page Nos
GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/




PLANNING COMMITTEE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority.

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National 
Park Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can 
determine planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area 
of the district on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South 
Downs National Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP. 

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT

The report is divided into two main parts; 

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.  

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which 
the Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National 
Park Authority.  

Each part of the report is split into two sections:  

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations 

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, 
details of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with 
a recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items.

Section 2 – Other matters 

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse. No formal presentation will 
be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be no public participation.”

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are 



understood to be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in 
advance of the Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports 
may have been prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or 
neighbour comment.  Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially 
amended between preparing the report and the Committee meeting or where 
additional information has been received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper 
will be circulated at the meeting to assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to 
members of the public.

3. PLANNING POLICY

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development 
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material 
policies or proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application 
should be determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are 
other material considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and 
other material considerations will also be taken into account.  One such 
consideration will be whether the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The 
relevant development plans are the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East 
Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 2014 and the saved policies in the East 
Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the  report on each item.  

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states:  “Planning 
law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”  

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development 
that departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it 
should proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-
date in terms of housing delivery.  

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also 
fairly and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters 
of what constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in 
land-use planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and 
external appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with 
landscaping, impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.  



4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are:
 loss of property value  loss of view
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants
 the impact of construction work  property maintenance issues
 need for development (save in 

certain defined circumstances)
 the identity or personal characteristics of 

the applicant
 competition between firms,  or matters that are dealt with by other 

legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not a 
reason to refuse planning permission or 
defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation.

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  
Nevertheless, where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to 
relevant considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.  

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because 
there are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its 
merits in the light of all the material considerations. 

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS 

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a 
clear land-use planning justification for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way 
that is clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a 
particular condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if 
the condition were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special 
and precise justification. 

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations 
should meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be: 
 necessary;
 relevant to planning;
 directly related to the proposed development;
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and
 reasonable in all other respects.

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that 



planning permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for 
unacceptable development to be permitted because of benefits or inducements 
offered by a developer, which are not necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration 
to be taken into account when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it 
is for the Council to decide what weight should be attached to a particular material 
consideration. 

6. PLANNING APPEALS 
Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the specified period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it:

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time.

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance.

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show 
clearly, why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be

 complete, 
 precise, 
 specific
 relevant to the application, and
 supported by substantiated evidence. 

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice 

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence.

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal 
but rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision.

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed.

The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council:
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF,
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach. 
An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 54 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site,



(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law,
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable,

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the 
planning authority where circumstances have not materially changed,

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances,

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage,

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions,

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 204 of the NPPF, or

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to 
highway matters.

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an 
application to him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. 
In general, this power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State 
will not interfere with the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is 
necessary to do so.  The Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of 
development proposals that directs local authorities to consult with the Secretary of 
State before granting planning permission.

8. PROPRIETY

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in 
planning matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning 
applications they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can 
include views expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support 
for a proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, 
unless it is founded upon valid planning reasons. 

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS 

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the 
public interest in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and 
private interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not 
whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial 
or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would 



unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings that ought 
to be protected in the public interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of 
private property are therefore not material planning consideration.

10.OTHER LEGISLATION 

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, 
also must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular: 

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination 
directly or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities. 

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for 
providing a service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by 
providing a lower standard of service. 

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain 
and promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic 
rights of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in 
order to protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The specific 
Articles of the ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and 
public hearing), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence), Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of 
Protocol 1 (Right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of 
property).  All planning applications are assessed to make sure that the 
subsequent determination of the development proposal is compatible with the 
Act.  If there is a potential conflict, this will be highlighted in the report on the 
relevant item.

11.PUBLIC SPEAKING

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum 
of three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak 
must have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at 
the Committee meeting itself.

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the 
Access to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will 
be allowed to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the 
Committee meeting.  

12. INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and 
at the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The 

http://www.easthats.gov.uk/


files and drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for 
Councillors to inspect.

13.FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the 
event of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s 
decision.  Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications 
may result in the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning 
appeal.  Officers will aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide 
appropriate advice in such circumstances.

Simon Jenkins
Head of Planning 

Background Papers:

 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case)
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements
 any other document specifically referred to in the report.





PLANNING COMMITTEE

PS.487/2017
13 July 2017

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT

No new major applications have been submitted since the previous agenda of 22 June 
2017.  Councillors may suggest possible future site visits under this item.







PART 2

SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING 

Applications to be determined by the council on behalf 
of the South Downs National Park Authority

PS.487/2017
13 July 2017

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

Report to Planning Committee
Date 13 July 2017
By Head of Planning
Local Authority East Hampshire District Council
Application
Number

SDNP/16/03778/FUL

Applicant Mr Michael Goldmeier & Webber Holdings Ltd
Application Demolition of existing single storey rear extension, 

conversion of existing ground floor offices to three retail 
units, and conversion and extension of upper floors to 
provide six residential units - amended proposal, February 
2017

Address 14 /14a Chapel Street, Petersfield, Hampshire, GU32 3DP

Recommendation: That the application be approved for the reasons and 
subject to conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report.

Executive Summary

The application is referred to Committee at the request of Councillor J Abdey so that issues
relating to loss of privacy and daylight can be fully debated.



1 Site Description

The site lies within the Petersfield Town Centre, Petersfield Conservation Area and 
South Downs National Park.  Directly to the north is a pedestrian way between Chapel 
Street and the Swan Street Car Park, which is to the rear of the site.  The Old Drum 
public house is beyond that to the north, with new housing to its rear.  The site has 
most recently accommodated the Job Centre with public access on the ground floor 
and associated offices above. 

The building is three storeys high, and is end of terrace, with a single storey, flat-roofed 
element to one side and single storey extensions to the rear.  The main structure is of a 
traditional appearance which makes a positive contribution to the character of the 
Conservation Area.

2 Proposal

The application proposes the demolition of a single storey rear element and the 
construction of a two storey rear extension to the building and the conversion of the 
building into 3 retail units with 6 apartments above.

3 Relevant Planning History

SDNP/14/06359/PRE - Pre application advice sought
SDNP/15/02720/PRE - Pre application advice sought

4 Consultations 

Environmental Health Services - Contaminated Land – No objection subject to a 
condition.

Conservation Section – Originally recommended refusal.  Amended scheme submitted 
and now no objection subject to conditions as set out in the report.

County Archaeologist – No archaeological issues raised.

EH -Traffic Management Team – Concerns raised over the shortfall of parking on the 
site due to the congestion of the Swan Street Car Park. 

HCC - East Hants Highways – No objection subject to a condition relating to parking 
provision.

EH - Drainage – No objection subject to conditions

Parish Council - Members are not against a development on this site but object to this 
application on the following grounds:-
1. The design is over massing and needs to be scaled down.



2. Likely reduction of light and imposing on the recently built cottages on the other side 
of the footpath.
3. The design is an inappropriate building in the conservation area.

Further comments:

Objection – inappropriate building in conservation area.  Likely reduction of light and 
imposing on recently built cottages on the other side of the footpath.  Design is over 
massing and needs to be scaled down.

Further comments awaited on amended plans:

Members have no objection to the proposed three retail units but object to the two 
storey extension as there appears to be no significant variation from the previous 
design.

The design is over massing and is inappropriate for a building in the conservation area. 
There is insufficient detail in the plans for a centre town development.

5 Representations

Representations have been received from 8 people and from the Petersfield Society, 
all raising objections.

Issues raised are:

a) Loss of privacy to dwellings to the rear of The Old Drum;
b) loss of sunlight to these dwellings and to the pub garden;
c) concern about the type of tenants of the proposed retail units and possibility of 

customers hanging about in the alley;
d) query about deliveries to the proposed retail units and access via the Swan Street 

car park which is said the be congested;
e) lack of parking in the area;
f) objections to the dwelling which was originally proposed to the rear of the building 

(now removed from the application);
g) overdevelopment;
h) concern about whether the retail units would be utilised;
i) impact of construction works on the area - obstruction being caused;
j) design would be out of character with the area;
k) increase in noise and disturbance;
l) impact on property values;
m) ability of drains to cope;
n) lack of soft landscaping;
o) poor quality of plans, excessive amount of extension, and 
p) lack of reference to the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan in the application and in 

the Conservation Officer's comments.



6 Planning Policy Context

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area 
is the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy, the East Hampshire 
District Local Plan: 2nd Revision 2006 and the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan.

The relevant policies to this application are set out in section 7, below.

National Park Purposes
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are:

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,  
 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the 

special qualities of their areas.

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. 
There is also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community 
in pursuit of these purposes.  

7 Planning Policy 

Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and 
the Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) which was issued and came into effect on 27 March 2012. 
The Circular and NPPF confirm that National Parks have the highest status of 
protection and the NPPF states at paragraph 115 that great weight should be given to 
conserving landscape and scenic beauty in the national parks and that the 
conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage are important considerations and should 
also be given great weight in National Parks. 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in 
the assessment of this application: 
Section 1: Building a strong, competitive economy 
Section 2: Ensuring the vitality of town centres 
Section 4: Promoting sustainable transport 
Section 7: Requiring good design
Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Paragraph 115 - importance of conserving the landscape and scenic beauty of the 
National Park (including the cultural heritage)



The South Downs National Park Preferred Options Local Plan was approved by 
Members at Committee on 16 July 2015 to go out for public consultation in September. 
The consultation period has now ended and responses received will be considered by 
the Authority in due course. The next stage in the plan preparation will then be the 
proposed submission. Until this time, the Preferred Options Local Plan is a material 
consideration in the assessment of this planning application in accordance with 
paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which confirms that weight 
can be given to policies in emerging plans following publication. Based on the early 
stage of preparation the policies within the Preferred Options Local Plan are currently 
afforded limited weight. The following policies are considered to be of relevance to this 
application:

Strategic Policies: 
Draft Policy SD6: Design
Draft Policy SD11: Historic Environment
Draft Policy SD18: Transport and Accessibility
Draft Policy SD20: Sustainable Tourism and Visitor Economy

Development Management Policies:
Draft Policy SD38: Conservation areas
Draft Policy SD43: Car and cycle parking provision

The following policies of the Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan (2015) are relevant to 
this application:

 Policy BEP1: The character, setting and quality of the town's built environment
 Policy BEP2: The character of the Conservation Area
 Policy BEP6: The Settlement Boundary
 Policy RP1: Encourage new Retail Development in the Town Centre
 Policy RP2: Maintaining an appropriate mix and balance of retail uses
 Policy HP8: Housing policy

The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance 
with the NPPF and are considered to be complaint with the NPPF.

The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core 
Strategy  are relevant to this application:

• CP7 - New Retail Provision

• CP8 - Town and Village Facilities and Services

• CP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

• CP2 - Spatial Strategy

• CP10 - Spatial Strategy for Housing



• CP11 - Housing Tenure, Type and Mix

• CP13 - Affordable Housing on Residential Development Sites

• CP27 - Pollution

• CP29 - Design

• CP30 - Historic Environment

• CP31 - Transport

• CP25 - Flood Risk

The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: 2nd Revision 2006
 are relevant to this application:

• HE4 - New Development in a Conservation Area

• HE5 - Alterations to a Building in a Conservation Area

• S2 - Non Retail Uses In Shopping Centres

Partnership Management Plan
The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 
December 2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National Park, as 
well as 5 year Policies and a continually updated Delivery Framework. The SDPMP is 
a material consideration in planning applications and has some weight pending 
adoption of the SDNP Local Plan. 

8 Planning Assessment

1.  Principle of Proposal
2.  Design and Impact on the Character of the Area (Conservation Area and wider 

National Park)
3.  Impact on Neighbours' Amenities
4.  Highways Safety and Parking
5.  Drainage
6.  Affordable Housing and Community Infrastructure Levy

1.  Principle of Proposal

The site is within a Settlement Policy Boundary so the principle of development is 
acceptable subject to detailed consideration of general planning issues including 
impact on amenity, impact on the character of the area, access and parking issues.  
The site is within the Petersfield Town Centre area where retail use is supported and 
residential use can be seen to contribute to the vitality of the area (it is within a Policy 
S2 Primary Shopping frontage).   



Policy CP7 of the EHDLP:JCS supports a limited amount of  retail provision in 
Petersfield. Relevant Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan, Saved East Hampshire District 
Plan: Second Review and Joint Core Strategy Policies are listed above.

The use of the building has most recently been as a Job Centre with associated 
offices, which is an A2 use and, therefore, not protected by policies that seek to retain 
B Class employment uses.  The proposal includes the reinstatement of the ground floor 
to retail use (3 units), which is an appropriate use in this town centre location in terms 
of Policy CP7, and which would ensure that some employment would be retained.  
Policy CP8 particularly emphasises the importance of Petersfield as a retail centre so 
the provision of new retail space in this town centre location is viewed positively as it 
would contribute to the vitality and viability of the area. The residential use is in 
accordance with JCS policies, including CP1, CP2 and CP10.  For a scheme of six 
dwellings an affordable housing contribution would be required under Policy CP13, but 
a viability assessment has been submitted and independently reviewed, which has 
demonstrated that it is not viable to develop this scheme with the affordable housing 
contribution.

The principle of the proposal is, therefore, considered to be acceptable in line with the 
policies referred to above, subject to an assessment of relevant planning issues 
including the impact on the character of the area, the impact on the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area, the wider National Park, amenity and highways 
issues.

2.  Design and Impact on the Character of the Area (Conservation Area and wider 
National Park)

The proposal has been subject to pre-application discussions and has been amended 
during the course of consideration of the application.  Some of the representations of 
objection refer to the original drawings, which have been amended so that some of 
these issues have been addressed.  The building is within the Petersfield Conservation 
Area but is not listed nor is an especially attractive building.  It has a single storey flat 
roofed element to one side, adjacent to the passage that leads to the Swan Street Car 
Park.  Single storey flat roofed side/rear elements would be removed from the scheme 
and the building would be extended at first and second floor levels above part of the 
flat roofed side/rear section of the building.  Whereas the extent of the existing building 
is 31.5m in depth, it would be extended upwards and consolidated into a building 
16.5m deep with a courtyard to the rear.

The Conservation Officer has provided detailed comments due to the sites location 
within the Petersfield Conservation Area.  Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires planning authorities, when considering 
whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a Conservation 
Area, to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 
and appearance of that area.  The Conservation Officer also refers to the NPPF and 
EHDLP:JCS Policies CP29 and CP30 which seek to ensure that proposals harmonise 
with the townscape, are assimilated into the landscape and conserve and, where 
possible, enhance the District's historic environment.  



Saved Policies HE4 and HE5 of the EHDLP:Local Plan are also relevant as the 
proposal involves alterations and extensions to a building in a Conservation Area.  

The Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan Policies BEP1, BEP2 and BEP4 are all relevant, 
which seek to ensure that development meets the highest standards of design and 
makes a positive contribution to the character to the town.  In terms of the character of 
the Conservation Area specifically it refers to simple building forms, use of traditional 
materials, varied roofscapes, fenestration including sash windows and traditional shop 
fronts.  The massing and built form to ensure a sense of place is referred to in Policy 
BEP1.

The Conservation Officer advises that the scheme has evolved through the pre-
application process and has been amended during the course of consideration of the 
application. There were originally concerns over the height and bulk of the roof form 
proposed, the scale of the extension and the size and proportions of the fenestration.  
The scheme is now considered to be more in line with advice given at the pre-
application stage, with the ridge height set down and without any flat roofed element in 
the scheme.  The extension would be subservient to the main building, which it would 
be attached to, and it is considered that it would enhance the character of the 
Conservation Area through the removal of the flat roofed building.  The sequential drop 
in roof heights from the job centre to the Old Drum to the north would create rhythm 
and interest in the street-scene.

The amended front elevation represents an enhancement to the conservation area 
over the current Job Centre building, with the proposed arched shop front reflecting the 
traditional detailing of the adjoining building. The front facing upper floor windows 
proposed would be simple, well proportioned timber sliding sash type, appropriate to 
the status of the conservation area.

The proposed shopfronts facing the alley would introduce an active frontage to this 
footway where a high blank brick wall currently exists, again considered to be an 
enhancement to the character of the conservation area and public realm.  The 
fenestration serving the upper floors facing the alley and rear has also been 
redesigned and better relates to the overall design in both layout and proportion. 

The dwelling to the rear which was initially proposed has been omitted and the wrap 
around element of the proposed extension has been scaled down, with the roof form 
and windows redesigned in the light of Officer concerns. The amended scheme is 
considered to represent a more coherent approach and is more respectful of the 
traditional form of the host building. Given the ad-hoc nature of the series of flat roofed 
extensions to the rear, the comprehensive coherent traditional design proposed is 
considered an enhancement of the conservation area.   Conditions are recommended 
by the Conservation Officer to ensure appropriate detailing and the proposed close-
boarded fence is considered to be inappropriate.

Taking into account  the views of the Conservation Officer it is considered that the 
proposal would enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area,  thus 
would be acceptable.   



The building is within the Petersfield Town Centre area and would not have any wider 
impact on the SDNP countryside, and would be in accordance with the NPPF 
requirements for development in National Parks to respect the cultural heritage of the 
area.   

The proposal would therefore be in accordance with Section 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, EHDLP:JCS Policies CP29 and CP30,  
Saved Policies HE4 and HE5 of the EHDLP:Local Plan and  The Petersfield 
Neighbourhood Plan Policies BEP1, BEP2 and BEP4.

3.  Impact on Neighbours' Amenities

Several neighbours living in Drum Mews, a recent development to the rear of The 
Drum public house have raised objections to this application on the grounds of 
overlooking, loss of light and noise and disturbance.  The site is in a town centre 
location with a public house adjacent and in a location where retail uses are 
encouraged to be provided and retained.  The provision of an active frontage onto the 
alleyway with a retail unit in that location is considered to be positive in terms of the 
character of the area, would enhance natural surveillance, and it is not considered that 
the extent of additional activity would be detrimental to amenity.  The extent of the new 
building above the existing single storey level, which would extend back beyond the 
rear of the adjacent Old Drum public house, would be about 4m, so it would slightly 
overlap the pub's beer garden, but is not considered to be overbearing to the beer 
garden or block direct light into it.  The new development would be 13m to the east of 
the Drum Mews development and would not be overbearing on it or have any 
significant impact on daylight to the front of the dwellings in Drum Mews.

Any overlooking from new first and second floor rear windows towards the front of the 
dwellings at Drum Mews would be at an extremely oblique angle.  These dwellings 
front onto an alleyway where passers by have views towards the dwellings.

For these reasons the proposal would be in accordance with Policy CP27 of the 
EHDLP:JCS and paragraph 17 of the NPPF.

4.  Highways Safety and Parking

There is existing access to the rear of the building through the Swan Street car park 
with on-site parking provision for 4 cars, which would be retained with the proposed 
development, although the drawings are not clear as to the parking layout.  There is 
sufficient space within the site, therefore, it is recommended that the parking layout be 
required to be agreed with the LPA and that cycle storage be required to be provided 
through a condition.  

The EHDC Parking Team have expressed some concern regarding the shortfall of 
parking when there is already congestion in the Swan Street car park, but this would be 
the case whatever use the building is put to.  



The Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan Policy HP8 states that off-street parking spaces 
and secure cycle storage should be provided in line with its tables 3 and 4 (which 
reflect EHDC standards) but it also states that these requirements can be modified at 
the discretion of the LPA, for example for town centre sites.  Despite the shortfall in 
parking (one for each of the six flats and five spaces for the retail use, based on the 
floor area measured from the plans and taken at 1.5 spaces per 40sq m for an 
accessible location), the Highway Authority (HCC) does not object in terms of highways 
safety.

The site is in a central location, accessible to public transport and the proposal would 
be in accordance with EHDLP:JCS Policy CP31 and the PNP Policy HP8.

5.  Drainage

Impact on drainage has been raised as a concern in some of the representations.  
However, no change to the existing drainage system is proposed and there would not 
be any change to the overall extent of the hard surfaced area on the site.   The 
Drainage Consultant has raised no objection subject to conditions as recommended.  
The proposal would, therefore, be in accordance with EHDLP: JCS Policy CP25.

6.  Affordable Housing and Community Infrastructure Levy

For a scheme providing 6 dwelling units a commuted sum would be payable towards 
the off-site provision of affordable housing, in lieu of on-site provision in line with Policy 
CP13 of the JCS and more recent NPPG Policy as adopted by the SDNP.  However, a 
viability assessment for the scheme and its ability to provide for affordable housing has 
been submitted, which has been independently assessed by the District Valuation 
Service and found to be unviable.  In the light of these conclusions a financial 
contribution towards affordable housing is not sought in this instance and the LPA is 
not seeking this contribution.

The scheme would be CIL Liable and the relevant forms have been completed.

9 Conclusion

It is concluded that the proposal would be acceptable in principle and would enhance 
the character and appearance  of the Petersfield Conservation Area and of the wider 
South Downs National Park.  The impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and 
on highways safety would be acceptable.  The proposal would be in accordance with 
EHDLP:Second Review, EHDLP:JCS, NPPF, Petersfield Neighbourhood Plan and 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990  that 
are referred to above.



10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions

It is recommended that the application be approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below.

1. Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans 
listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application".
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission.
Reason -  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended)./ To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

3. No development shall commence on site until details, including labelled samples 
(manufacturer, type and where it is to be used) of all external materials (including 
finishes), have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.
Reason - To ensure the materials and finishes to be used are appropriate, in order to 
maintain the character and appearance of the conservation area.  It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be 
agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the 
planning permission. 

4. Notwithstanding the approved plans, development hereby permitted shall not be 
commenced until detailed drawings of the traditional timber painted shopfronts and 
fenestration relating thereto have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The details to comprise:-

a) Plans to clearly identify the window and doors in question and their location within 
the property. 
b) 1:20 elevation and plan, 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail. The details to 
include the position of the windows within the opening (depth of reveal) and method of 
fixing the glazing (putty or beading) and all details showing the cornice, frieze, 
architrave and capital.
c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes. 

Further information can be found in the EHDC publication: 'Shopfront and signs Design 
Guide for East Hampshire. The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such 
approval and be retained thereafter.
Reason - In order to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the 
Conservation  Area.  It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement 
condition as these details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the 
development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission.



5. Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall 
not be commenced until detailed drawings of the windows and doors and their 
respective surrounds have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The details to comprise:-

a) Plans to clearly identify the window and doors in question and their location within 
the property. 
b) 1:20 elevation and plan, 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail.. The details to 
include the position of the window within the opening (depth of reveal), method of fixing 
the glazing (putty or beading), cills and surrounds. 
c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes. 

The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such approval and be retained 
thereafter.
Reason - In order to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area.  It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement 
condition as these details need to be agreed prior to the construction of the 
development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission.

6. All rainwater goods shall be of cast iron or die cast aluminium and painted black 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason - To protect the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

7. Details of the siting and design of any proposed external meter boxes/metal 
ducting/flues shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of development. 
Reason - To protect the character of the conservation area. It is considered necessary 
for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be agreed prior 
to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission. 

8. Notwithstanding the approved plans, full details of hard and soft boundary 
treatment are to be submitted prior to commencement. Development shall proceed in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To protect the character of the conservation area. It is considered necessary 
for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details need to be agreed prior 
to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission. 

9. All development shall be stopped immediately in the event that contamination 
not previously identified is found to be present on the development site and details of 
the contamination shall be reported immediately in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority.

Development shall not re-start on site until the following details have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:-
(a)   a scheme outlining a site investigation and risk assessments designed to assess 
the nature and extent of any contamination on the site. 



(b)   a written report of the findings which includes, a description of the extent, scale 
and nature of contamination, an assessment of all potential risks to known receptors, 
an update of the conceptual site model (devised in the desktop study), identification of 
all pollutant linkages and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and identified as unnecessary in the written report, an appraisal of 
remediation options and proposal of the preferred option(s) identified as appropriate for 
the type of contamination found on site and (unless otherwise first agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority)
(c)   a detailed remediation scheme designed to bring the site to a condition suitable for 
the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 
property and the natural and historical environment.  The scheme should include all 
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, 
timetable of works, site management procedures and a verification plan outlining 
details of the data to be collected in order to demonstrate the completion of the 
remediation works and any arrangements for the continued monitoring of identified 
pollutant linkages,

and before any part of the development is occupied or used (unless otherwise first 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) a verification report demonstrating 
the effectiveness of the remediation works carried out and a completion certificate 
confirming that the approved remediation scheme has been implemented in full shall 
both have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The above site works, details and certification submitted shall be in accordance with 
the approved scheme and undertaken by a competent person in accordance with 
DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11'.
Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

10. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a 
minimum of four car parking spaces have been provided within the curtilage of the site 
in accordance with details which have been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 
local planning authority.  The spaces shall thereafter be maintained and kept available 
at all times.
Reason - To ensure the adequate provision of on site parking for the purpose of 
highway safety.

11. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until details for 
the on site provision of  cycle storage facilities have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until 
the cycle storage has been constructed in accordance with the approved details and 
thereafter retained and kept available.
Reason - To ensure the adequate provision of on site facilities.



12. The proposed hard surface/s shall either be made of porous materials or 
provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface/s to a permeable 
or porous surface within the site.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage and avoid 
discharge of water onto the public highway.

13. No development shall commence on site until details of a scheme for foul and 
surface water drainage has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Such details should include provision for all surface water drainage from parking areas 
and areas of hardstanding to prevent surface water from discharging onto the highway 
and should be based on site investigation and percolation tests.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before any part of the 
development is first occupied and shall be retained thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage. It is considered necessary for this 
to be a pre-commencement condition as such details need to be taken into account in 
the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission.
Note: The applicant is requested to contact the Council's Drainage Consultant as soon 
as possible to discuss the details required for the discharge of the above condition.

14. Notwithstanding the changes of use permitted within Part 3 of Schedule 2 Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order) the ground floor of the development 
hereby permitted shall be used for purposes within Class A1 of the Town and Country 
(Use Classes) Order (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order) 1987 
only, and for no other purpose.
Reason - In order to maintain control over future use of the premises in the interests of 
the general amenity of the area and/or highway safety.

11. Crime and Disorder Implications 
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications. 

12. Human Rights Implications 
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 

interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the 
aims sought to be realised. 

13. Equality Act 2010 
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 

as contained within the Equality Act 2010. 



14. Proactive Working 

Amended details sought during the course of consideration of the application.

Contact Officer: Nicky Powis 
Tel: 01730 234226
email: nicky.powis@easthants.gov.uk

Appendices Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this 
Application

Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted:

Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status
Miscellaneous - Viability 
Report - DVS

1637677/CD
K

22.06.2017 Approved

Miscellaneous - 
Development appraisal

Sturt _ Co 17.05.2017 Approved

OS Extract - Location plan 24.02.2017 Approved
OS Extract - Block plan 24.02.2017 Approved
Plans - Ground floor plan BWH/16/005

A
a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - 1st floor plans BWH/16/006
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - second floor plan BWH/16/007
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - roof plan BWH/16/008
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - front elevation BWH/16/010
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - side elevation BWH/16/011
A

a 24.02.1027 Approved

Plans - rear elevation BWH/16/012
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - sections BWH/16/013
A

a 24.02.2017 Approved



Application Documents - 
Design, Access and 
Heritage Statement 
(updated Feb 2017)

24.02.2017 Approved

Plans - First floor plans BWH/16/006 25.07.2016 Approved
Application Form - 
Application form

25.07.2016 Approved

Application Documents - 
Design access and heritage 
statement

25.07.2016 Superseded

Application Documents - 
Marketing appraisal

SAM/EL/2106
16

25.07.2016 Approved

OS Extract - Location plan 16.08.2016 Superseded
OS Extract - Block plan 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Existing floor plans 4718/02 25.07.2016 Approved
Plans - Existing elevations 4718/03 25.07.2016 Approved
Plans - Ground floor plans BWH/16/005 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Second floor plan BWH/16/007 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Roof plan BWH/16/008 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Proposed elevations BWH/16/010 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Proposed elevation BWH/16/011 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Proposed sections BWH/16/013 25.07.2016 Superseded
Plans - Proposed house 
elevations

BWH/16/014 25.07.2016 Withdrawn

Plans - elevations BWH/16/012 25.07.2016 Superseded

Reasons: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.



Part 2 item 1 14/14a Chapel Street, Petersfield

Block plan



Part 2 item 1 14/14a Chapel Street, Petersfield

Ground floor plan

Proposed front elevation



Part 2 item 1 14/14a Chapel Street, Petersfield

Proposed side elevation

Proposed rear elevation



  

 

         



Item     02   
 
Report to Planning Committee 
Date 13 July 2017 
By Head of Planning 
Local Authority East Hampshire District Council 
Application 
Number 

SDNP/16/06316/FUL 

Applicant Mr T Stewart 
Application Single storey side and rear extensions to public house and 

three two storey dwellings with three associated car ports 
and new access, and with associated landscaping, parking 
and refuse storage (amended access details received 2 
March 2017) (Further drawings and viability study received 
30 March 2017)  Further access arrangement drawing 
received 12 April 2017 

Address The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 
 
 

 
Recommendation: That the application be approved for the reasons  and 
subject to the conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report and subject to 
the completion of a S106 agreement with obligations relating to the 
requirement that the works to extend and renovate the public house are 
completed to the satisfaction of the LPA prior to the occupation of the second 
of the three dwellings hereby permitted being occupied: 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This application is referred to Planning Committee at the discretion of the Head of  
Planning so that the planning merits can be fully debated. 
 
 
1 Site Description 

 
Binsted is a small village of residential properties of varying size and design. 
 
The Cedars Public House sits in a 0.76ha plot of land on the south side of The Street in 
the village of Binsted, and is a registered Asset of Community Value.  The pub faces 
north, fronting onto The Street and behind it to the south is a car park serving the pub, 
a garden and a field.  The pub building is a traditional building and an established 
feature in the street scene.  The Cedars Public House, the car park and most of the 
garden are within the Settlement Policy Boundary.   



The southern most part of the garden and the field are outside the Settlement Policy 
Boundary. The site is in the South Downs National Park. 
 
The access road into the site rises slightly from The Street, however, the site and field 
beyond are flat and featureless apart from some timber sheds and dense mature 
shrubs and trees along the east and west boundaries. 
 

 
2 Proposal 

 
This is a full planning application for 3 dwellings on land comprising part of the garden 
and car park to the rear of The Cedars Public House.  The car parking area would be 
moved to the west of the site, with an existing secondary access to the site being used 
to access it.  The existing access to the car park between The Cedars and Wesley 
House would be used for access to the proposed dwellings.  Some extensions and 
alterations to the public house are also proposed. 
 
The public house is registered as an Asset of Community Value (this process in 
intended to give the local community the opportunity to buy the building and keep it 
operating, but in this case the applicant is an independent purchaser who is looking to 
retain and upgrade the public house in association with residential development of part 
of the site).  The application includes works to refurbish the public house through a rear 
extension, the removal of a wooden shelter, internal alterations, upgrading of the front 
elevation, a new entrance lobby and improved toilets. 
 
Part of the new parking area and part of the gardens of the dwellings would be located 
outside the Settlement Policy Boundary but the new buildings would be within it. 
 
The dwellings would comprise a terrace of three two-storey, three bedroomed houses 
set to the south-east of the public house on its existing car park.  A small garden would 
be retained between them and the new public house parking area to the east, which 
would accommodate 23 parking spaces, including two for the use of Lavender Cottage, 
which lies adjacent to the west of the site. 
 
Six parking spaces would be provided for the dwellings. 
 

 
3 Relevant Planning History 

 
SDNP/14/03461/OUT - Outline Permission Refused for 4 dwellings also dismissed on 
appeal. 

 
 
4 Consultations  
 

Parish Council - Binsted Parish Council OBJECTS due to: 
 
 
 



The Visual impact of the proposed properties to the open space and character of the 
village which under previous applications was refused due to this issue. In this 
application the visual impact has increased compared the previous refusal. Equally the 
housing design is not in keeping with the red brick and malmstone village scene. 
 
The environmental impact to especially neighbouring Ivy Cottage, not least the traffic 
noise and fumes, but vibration from traffic with regards to the fabric of the cottage. It is 
circa 17th century construction with a cellar and as is expected to have limited to no  
foundations which was common practice at that time of construction. 
 
Insufficient parking allocation compared to the HCC recommended level of parking 
required. 
 
Part of the property gardens are outside of the settlement policy boundary by some 8 
or 9 meters. 
 
No legal tie has been made to ensure that the development is done as a whole, before 
any sale of property, to ensure the pub must be upgraded rather than the properties 
could be built, sold and then the pub run down and closed, instead of completing the 
proposed development per the community involvement. 
 
Inadequate visibility splays are proposed at the access with the highway and 
consequently would cause danger and inconvenience to users of the adjoining 
highway. 
 
Planning for 2 parking spaces at the front of the adjacent property to the proposed new 
access (Ivy cottage) was refused per 33477/004 ->  
https://planningpublicaccess.easthants.gov.uk/online-
applications/files/E5B107C0FED5015A892308B92A9EF598/pdf/SDNP_33477_004-
Decision_Notice-267355.pdf mainly for this very reason. 
It has not been noted that cars are legally parked on the road adjacent to the access 
which means that when turning left out of the development, cars will have to pull out 
directly into the oncoming traffic lane. Again this would cause danger and convenience 
to users of the adjoining highway. 
 
HCC - East Hants Highways  - Following negotiations and amended drawings, no 
subject to a S278 Agreement and conditions as recommended. 
 
 
HCC Highways - Strategic Applications – The traffic team has no adverse comment to 
make on this application 
 
EH - Landscape Officer – No objection although advises that two houses rather than 3 
would provide a less cramped form of development with more room for boundary 
planting. 
 
EH - Arboricultural Officer - North - Arboricultural Officer. No objection. A condition 
should be applied that requires the proposal to be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan. 

https://planningpublicaccess.easthants.gov.uk/online-


Environmental Health Services - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to 
conditions. 
 
EHDC Drainage - No objection subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
EH -Traffic Management Team - The traffic team has no adverse comment to make on 
this application 
 

 
5 Representations 

 
Representations of support have been received from 15 writers, and the applicant has 
also written in support of the application. 
 
Objections have been received from five writers and one neutral comment has been 
received. 
 
In support it is stated that: 
 
a)   Proposed dwellings would fit into the character of the village; 
b)   dwellings would provide finance for much needed improvements to the public 

house - this should be secured through a legal agreement.  The building is 
currently in a very poor state of repair; 

c)   would provide smaller dwellings needed in village; 
d)   public house is a registered Asset of Community Value and the community support 

the retention of a successful public house; 
e)   built development should not spill over into the countryside but gardens 

encroaching beyond SPB not seen as a problem; 
f)   should remove permitted development rights from dwellings; 
g)   applicant has fully engaged with the Community and taken their comments on 

board; 
h)   the access that would be used is already existing; 
i)   proposals for the front elevation would enhance the appearance of the building; 
j)   parking would be provided for Ivy Cottage, which would otherwise not  have any, 

and 
k)   concern about potential  loss of public house and lack of any other community 

facilities in the village. 
 
Objections raised are: 
 
a)  The reasons for refusal of the previous application for 4 dwellings and the Appeal  

Decision have not been fully addressed with regard to the siting of the dwellings to 
the rear of the public house and Wesley House - proposed dwellings would have 
as great an impact as those refused; 

b)  impact on amenities of occupiers of Ivy Cottage from traffic noise and possible 
impact on its structure from passing traffic; 

c)  poor visibility at the access that would be used to enter and exit the new parking 
area, further restricted by parked cars; 

d)  lack of provision for waste bin storage and collection; 



e)  shortage of parking space provision; 
f)  too much hard landscaping (an issue raised by the previous Appeal Inspector); 
g)  development would extend beyond the SPB; 
h)  proposed white painted brick would be out of character with Binsted; 
i)  reference made to pre-application advice which suggested a smaller scale of 

development and advised that the impact on the character of the area should be 
fully taken into account; 

j)  full details of the upgrading of the public house are not included and concern as to 
how this would be made to happen if permission is given for the housing; 

k)  the purposes of the inclusion of the site within the SDNP are overlooked in the 
application; 

l)  changes to the SPB are proposed in the SDNP Local Plan Preferred Options 
document, excluding the site from the SPB; 

m)  The Cedars is an important facility for local residents, walkers etc - concern that 
reducing the site by allowing housing on it would affect this; 

n)  concern that full redevelopment of the site would follow; 
o)  inadequate garden would be retained for the public house; 
p)  concern about overspill of cars from the car park onto the highway, adding to 

visibility issues at the access proposed to be used for the new car park; 
q)  loss of outlook from  dwelling due to new houses; 
r)  loss of light and of privacy and,  
s)  car park should not be allowed to encroach outside the SPB. 
 

 
6 Planning Policy Context 
 

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area 
is the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy and East Hampshire 
District Local Plan: 2nd Revision 2006 

  
 The relevant policies to this application are set out in section 7, below. 

  
 National Park Purposes 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage,   
 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the 

special qualities of their areas. 
 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. 
There is also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community 
in pursuit of these purposes. 
  
 
 
 
 

 



7 Planning Policy  
 

Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance 
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and 
the Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) which was issued and came into effect on 27 March 2012. 
The Circular and NPPF confirm that National Parks have the highest status of 
protection and the NPPF states at paragraph 115 that great weight should be given to 
conserving landscape and scenic beauty in the national parks and that the 
conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage are important considerations and should 
also be given great weight in National Parks.  

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in 
the assessment of this application:  

 
Section 1: Building a strong, competitive economy  
Section 4: Promoting sustainable transport  
Section 7: Requiring good design 
Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
 
The South Downs National Park Preferred Options Local Plan was approved by 
Members at Committee on 16 July 2015 to go out for public consultation in September. 
The consultation period has now ended and responses received will be considered by 
the Authority in due course. The next stage in the plan preparation will then be the 
proposed submission. Until this time, the Preferred Options Local Plan is a material 
consideration in the assessment of this planning application in accordance with 
paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework, which confirms that weight 
can be given to policies in emerging plans following publication. Based on the early 
stage of preparation the policies within the Preferred Options Local Plan are currently 
afforded limited weight. The following policies are considered to be of relevance to this 
application: 
 
Strategic Policies:  
Draft Policy SD6: Design 
Draft Policy SD18: Transport and Accessibility 
 
Development Management Policies: 
Draft Policy SD43: Car and cycle parking provision 
 
 
The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance 
with the NPPF and are considered to be complaint with the NPPF. 
 
The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core 
Strategy  are relevant to this application: 
  



• CP1 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 
• CP2 - Spatial Strategy 
 
• CP10 - Spatial Strategy for Housing 
 
• CP16 - Protection and Provision of Social Infrastructure, Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation 
 
• CP20 - Landscape 
 
• CP24 - Sustainable Construction 
 
• CP27 - Pollution 
 
• CP29 - Design 
 
• CP31 - Transport 
 
 The following policies of the East Hampshire District Local Plan: 2nd Revision 2006 
 are relevant to this application: 
 
• H3 - Residential Development within Settlement Policy Boundaries, Empty 
Home Strategy 
 
 
Partnership Management Plan 
The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 
December 2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National Park, as 
well as 5 year Policies and a continually updated Delivery Framework. The SDPMP is 
a material consideration in planning applications and has some weight pending 
adoption of the SDNP Local Plan.  
 
The following Policies and Outcomes are of particular relevance to this case: 
 

 General Policy 1 
 

 General Policy 49 
 

 General Policy 50 
 
 
The South Downs Local Plan: Preferred Options was approved for consultation by the 
National Park Authority on 16th July 2015 to go out for public consultation under 
Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012.  The consultation period ran from 2nd September to 28th October 
2015.  The responses received are being considered by the Authority.  The next stage 
in the plan preparation will be the publication and then submission of the Local Plan for 
independent examination.   



Until this time, the Preferred Options Local Plan is a material consideration in the 
assessment of this planning application in accordance with paragraph 216 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework, which confirms that weight can be given to 
policies in emerging plans following publication.  Based on the early stage of 
preparation the policies within the Preferred Options Local Plan are currently afforded 
limited weight and are not relied upon in the consideration of this application.  
 

8 Planning Assessment 
 
1. Principle of Proposal 
 
Policy CP1 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) applies to development within the 
Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) where there is a presumption in favour of 
development.  Policy CP2 identifies a sustainable hierarchy of SPB and sets out five 
levels of sustainable settlements.  The application site falls mainly within one of the 
identified SPBs and, therefore, the principle of development is generally acceptable, 
subject to all other relevant planning considerations and policies.  Part of the gardens 
for the dwellings and some of the car park for the public house would fall outside the 
SPB - there would not be any built development on those areas so they would remain 
open.  The JCS Policy CP2 also states that new development must fully acknowledge 
the constraints and opportunities of the South Downs National Park and the form, scale 
and location of development must ensure that the duty and purposes of the National 
Park are delivered.  These policy issues are fully considered below. 
 
Whilst the principle of residential development on part of this site is in accordance with 
EHDLP:JCS and NPPF Policies, officers have some concerns about the extent of 
residential development proposed.  The proposal for three dwellings has been justified 
through a viability study, which has been reviewed by the LPA's Economic 
Development team.  It has been demonstrated through this viability report that the 
extent of the works required to renovate and extend the public house so that it could 
operate in a sustainable way in the future would require a development of the scale 
proposed to fund it. 
 
There would be a reasonable garden area retained for the public house.  In the 
previous Appeal Decision the Inspector was of the opinion that the current extent of 
public house garden is under utilised and reducing this down would make it more 
manageable and reduce maintenance costs. 
 
On this basis, officers are supportive of the principle of developing three dwellings on 
part of the site subject to other planning considerations being acceptable. 
 
2. Design and Impact on the Character of the Area (including on the purposes of 

including the site within the SDNP) 
 
The extensions and alterations to the public house would mainly be to the rear, but the 
works include a new front entrance porch, painting of the existing brickwork and new 
powder-coated aluminium windows in the front elevation.  These changes would be in 
keeping with the street-scene and the character of the area.   



The extensions to the rear would be single storey, with pitched roofs in plain clay tiles, 
timber cladding and full length glazing to the proposed new dining area.  
 
The three new dwellings would be of brick and tile and with timber cladding on some 
elements.  The design and materials would be in keeping with the character of the area 
but officers have some concerns that the overall impact of the three dwellings would be 
somewhat bulky on the constrained site.  Attempts have been made to seek amended 
design to reduce the visual bulk and to achieve a more 'cottagey' feel but this has been 
unsuccessful.  Officers are concerned that every attempt should be made to seek to 
retain the public house and on this basis a recommendation for permission is being 
made for the scheme in its current form.    
 
A previous application for four dwellings to the rear of The Cedars has been refused 
permission and dismissed on Appeal.  The Appeal Inspector was concerned about the 
impact on the character and appearance of the locality and specifically referred to the 
impact on the open area to the rear of Wesley House.  However, his concern was 
largely with the proposed arrangement of the dwellings, side on to the field at the rear, 
without rear gardens abutting the countryside edge.  This issue has been addressed by 
having the dwellings facing towards the front of the site with rear gardens adjoining the 
countryside to the rear.   
 
Whilst officers are of the opinion that a design more in keeping with Binsted could be 
achieved, they have walked along the footpaths to the rear of the site and are confident 
that the proposal would not have a significant wider impact in the National Park 
Countryside, or adversely affect the purposes of the inclusion of the site within the 
National Park. 
 
The proposal would be in accordance with EHDLP: JCS Policy CP29. 
 
3. Impact on Neighbours' Amenities 
 
The public house is existing and although it is proposed to extend it to form a new 
dining area, storage and preparation areas and a new WC area, it is not considered 
that the impact of its operation on neighbours' amenities would be significantly different 
to the current planning use. 
 
The application proposes 3 two storey dwellings, a new parking area to the west of the 
site and use of an existing access between the public house and Ivy Cottage as the 
main vehicular access to the site.   
In terms of impact on amenities, there would be significant new vehicle movement 
between the site and Ivy Cottage, which has side windows right on the shared 
boundary.  The proposal incorporates some allocated parking space specifically for Ivy 
Cottage, which would benefit that property.  It is recommended that appropriate 
boundary treatment be required to be provided by condition between the site and Ivy 
Cottage and with this it is considered that the impact on the amenities of the occupants 
of that property would be acceptable.    
 
The three dwellings would be in a backland location to the rear of Wesley House and 
the front of the dwellings would look towards the rear of Wesley House.   



Whilst Wesley House currently has the public house car park to its rear, and so already 
suffers from some loss of amenity, the proposal would have an impact on resident's 
privacy through new first floor windows looking towards the rear of the property.  The 
front of the closest dwelling would be 27m away from the rear of Wesley House and 
21m from its rear boundary fence.  This proximity is considered to be acceptable in 
terms of protection of privacy and the current situation of public access to the area to 
the rear of Wesley House would be removed.  The owner of Wesley House has 
objected in terms of loss of outlook across the field to the rear, and loss of light from 
the proposed dwellings.  Given the distance between properties it is not considered 
that loss of light would be sustainable as a reason for refusal, and the loss of outlook to 
the rear cannot be protected as the planning system cannot protect private views. 
 
The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of impact on amenity and would 
be in accordance with EHDLP: JCS Policy CP27 and the NPPF paragraph 17. 
 
 
4. Highways Safety and Parking 
 
The access to the site is into the car park to the east of the site and would be retained 
and used for the proposed dwellings. 
 
The access to the new car parking area to the west would be via an existing access 
between the public house and Ivy Cottage.  This entrance is constrained by the 
buildings but is about 4m in width.  Adequate car parking would be provided.  The 
visibility at the proposed access is not as good as that at the existing access and the 
County Highway Authority has had some concerns regarding its use to access the car 
park and for deliveries and collections.  However, the applicant's transport consultant 
and the County Highway Authority have met on site to resolve the concerns raised 
about the use of this access.  The plans include a slight build out to improve the 
visibility for pedestrians crossing the access and this would also improve visibility for 
vehicles leaving the pub car park.  Concern over parked cars blocking views to the left 
have been raised but the Highway Authority is satisfied that the build our would stop 
cars parking right up against the radii of the access.  The Highway Authority is satisfied 
that the use of the access as the main way into and out of the pub car park can be 
achieved with the required visibility and, therefore, the Highway Authority accepts its 
use.  The improvements to the access would need to be achieved through a S278 
agreement.  Subject to this and to conditions as recommended the Highway Authority 
has no objection to the proposal and it would be in accordance with EHDLP:JCS Policy 
CP31. 
 
 
5. Impact on Trees and Vegetation 
 
There are no significant trees on the site that would be affected by the proposal.  There 
would be loss of grassed areas and an extension of hard surfacing, but no vegetation 
that is considered to be significant in the landscape would be lost and there are no tree 
protection orders on the site.  The Arboricultural Officer requests a condition to require 
that works are in accordance with the submitted Arboricultural Method Statement and 
Tree Protection Plan.   



The Landscape Officer advises that the development would be somewhat cramped, 
which would reduce the opportunity for boundary planting on the eastern boundary.  
She has no objection to the removal of the Leyland Cypress hedge adjacent to the pub 
garden and its replacement with a native hedge.  A landscape condition is 
recommended. 
 
 
6. Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The scheme would be CIL Liable and the relevant forms have been completed. 
 
 
7. Legal Agreements 
 
A legal agreement is recommended to ensure that only the first house could be 
occupied prior to the works to upgraded the public house being completed to the 
satisfaction of the LPA.  A S278 agreement will be required with the County Highway 
Authority to provide the required improvements to the access.  
 
 

9 Conclusion 
 
It is concluded that the proposal for residential development on part of the public house 
site is acceptable in principle.  Whilst officers retain some concern over the extent of 
development proposed, it has been demonstrated that the public house building would 
be costly to renovate to a state where it would be hoped to be sustainable in the 
foreseeable future, and this extent of housing would be required to generate the 
necessary funds for this work.  Officers have some concerns about the design and bulk 
of the dwellings proposed, but have not been successful in agreeing an amended 
design and are keen to ensure that the public house can be retained as a community 
facility.  Technical issues such as car parking and access to and from the site are 
considered to be acceptable subject to conditions and legal agreements and a legal 
agreement would be sought to ensure that the renovations and extensions to the public 
house are carried out at an early stage.  The impact on public amenity would be 
acceptable and the proposal would be in accordance with the purposes of the National 
Park, EHDLP:JCS and NPPF Policies. 
 
 

10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
 
Provided that the applicant enters into a legal agreement to: 
 
a) Only the first house could be occupied prior to the works to upgraded the public 

house being completed to the satisfaction of the LPA; and  
b) Secure a S278 agreement will be required with the County Highway Authority to 

provide the required improvements to the access; and  
  the legal agreement be completed by 30 September 2017, then the Head of 

Planning be authorised to approve the application for the above reasons and 
subject to the conditions set out below. 



However, in the event that all parties do not enter into a legal agreement to secure 
points a) and b) above by 30 September 2017, then the application will be refused 
under the adopted scheme of delegation unless the Head of Planning, in consultation 
with the Portfolio Holder for Planning, authorises further time extension(s) for the 
completion of the legal agreement. 
 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 
Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
 
2. Approved Plans 
 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans 
listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application". 
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. Notwithstanding any indication of materials that may have been given in the 
application or in the absence of such information, no development above slab level 
shall take place on site until samples / details including manufacturers details of all the 
materials to be used for external facing and roofing for the development hereby 
approved have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason - To ensure that the materials used in the construction of the approved 
development harmonise with the surroundings. 
 
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order, 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 
modifying that Order) no extensions and outbuildings otherwise permitted under 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Class(es) A, B, C, D and E  of said Order shall be carried out on 
the dwellinghouses or within their curtilages without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - It is considered that further extension/alteration of this dwelling could result in 
an adverse effect upon the adjacent property(ies) and/or the visual character of the 
area. 
 
5. No development shall commence on site until a scheme has been submitted to, 
and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the 
residential built development hereby permitted incorporates measures that provide 
energy savings of no less than 10% above Building Regulations in force at the time the 
development is to be constructed.  
Before any part of the development is first occupied a verification report and 
completion certificate shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority 
confirming that the built development hereby permitted has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme.  



The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of assessing and 
providing the above required report and certificate to confirm that the completed works 
incorporate such measures as to provide the required energy savings. 
The energy saving works set out in the above report shall thereafter be maintained so 
that the required energy saving is sustained at the certified level for the lifetime of the 
development.  
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary mitigation and 
adaptation measures with regard to climate change.  It is considered necessary for this 
to be a pre-commencement condition as these details relate to the construction of the 
development and thus go to the heart of the planning permission. 
 
6. No development shall commence on site until the following details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority :-  
 (a) a desk top study report, documenting all the previous and existing land uses 
both on and adjacent to the site and including a conceptual site model and preliminary 
risk assessment. The report should be completed by a competent person and 
produced in accordance with national guidance, as set out in Contaminated Land 
Research Report No.11 and BS10175:2001; 
and unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority:- 
(b) a scheme outlining a site investigation and risk assessments designed to 
assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site;  
(c) a written report of the findings which includes, a description of the extent, scale 
and nature of contamination, an assessment of all potential risks to known receptors, 
an update of the conceptual site model (devised in the desktop study), identification of 
all pollutant linkages and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and identified as unnecessary in the written report, an appraisal of 
remediation options and proposal of the preferred option(s) identified as appropriate for 
the type of contamination found on site; 
and unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority:- 
(d) a detailed remediation scheme designed to bring the site to a condition suitable 
for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and 
other property and the natural and historical environment.  The scheme should include 
all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, 
timetable of works, site management procedures and a verification plan outlining 
details of the data to be collected in order to demonstrate the completion of the 
remediation works and any arrangements for the continued monitoring of identified 
pollutant linkages.  Site works and details submitted shall be in accordance with the 
approved scheme and undertaken by a competent person. 
The above reports and site works should be undertaken in accordance with DEFRA 
and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11'. 
Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.  It is 
considered necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as these details 
need to be agreed prior to the construction of the development and thus go to the heart 
of the planning permission. 
 



7. Before any part of the development is first occupied or brought into use (unless 
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) a verification report 
demonstrating the effectiveness of the remediation works carried out and a completion 
certificate confirming that the approved remediation scheme has been implemented in 
full shall both have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
The verification report and completion certificate shall be submitted in accordance with 
the approved scheme and undertaken by a competent person in accordance with 
DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 
Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
8. No development shall commence on site until details of a scheme for foul and 
surface water drainage has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority.  Such details should include provision for all surface water drainage 
from parking areas and areas of hardstanding to prevent surface water from 
discharging onto the highway and should be based on site investigation and 
percolation tests.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details before any part of the development is first occupied and shall be 
retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage. It is considered necessary for this 
to be a pre-commencement condition as such details need to be taken into account in 
the construction of the development and thus go to the heart of the planning 
permission. 
Note: The applicant is requested to contact the Council's Drainage Consultant as soon 
as possible to discuss the details required for the discharge of the above condition. 
 
9. The proposed hard surface/s shall either be made of porous materials or 
provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface/s to a permeable 
or porous surface within the site. 
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage and avoid 
discharge of water onto the public highway. 
 
10. The works shall be undertaken in accordance with the submitted Arboricultural 
Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement ref. 0892.bjh Dec 16 
and accompanying plans reference BJH01/02 and 03/04. 
Reason - To protect trees in the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
11.     No Residential development shall start on site until the access, including the 
footway and/or verge crossing between Ivy Cottage and The Cedars shall be 
constructed and lines of site of 2.4 metres by 41 metres provided in accordance with 
the approved plans.  The lines of site splays shown on the approved plan shall be kept 
free of any obstruction exceeding 1 metre in height above the adjacent carriageway 
and shall be subsequently maintained so thereafter. 
Reason - To provide satisfactory access with sufficient levels of visibility in the interests 
of highway safety or plus - It is considered necessary for this to be a pre-



commencement condition because the road and footpaths are essential to highway 
safety, upon which the remainder of the development hinges.  As such this is required 
to be addressed prior to development commencing and therefore goes to the heart of 
the planning permission. 
 
12. The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the 
area(s) shown on the approved plan for the parking of vehicles (including garages and 
those areas marked out on the plan as being unallocated) shall have been made 
available, surfaced and marked out. The parking area(s) shall then be permanently 
retained and reserved for that purpose at all times. 
Reason - To make provision for off street parking for the purpose of highway safety. 
 
13. No other development shall commence on site until highway /improvement 
works shown on the drawings 2016/3242/002 Rev A hereby approved and described in 
the letter dated 20 April 2017 from Hampshire County Council have been completed in 
accordance with those drawings and shall be thereafter maintained. 
Reason - To ensure safe access to and from the site. 
 
14. The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until a 
detailed boundary treatment plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The plan shall include details of the positions, design, 
materials/species of the boundary treatments to be erected/planted.  The approved 
details shall be fully implemented before the use of the development is commenced 
and/or any part of the development is occupied and shall be retained thereafter. 
Reason - To ensure an appropriate standard of visual amenity in the area and to 
safeguard the privacy and amenities of the residents of the locality. 
 
15. The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until a fully 
detailed landscape and planting scheme for the site has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and in accordance with the recommendations of 
the appropriate British Standards or other recognised codes of good practice.  These 
works shall be carried out in the first planting season after practical completion or first 
occupation of the development, whichever is earlier, unless otherwise first agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, are removed, die or 
become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably 
practicable with others of species, size and number as originally approved unless a 
suitable alternative species are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and to enable proper 
consideration to be given to the impact of the proposed development on existing trees. 
 
  

11.  Crime and Disorder Implications  
11.1  It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications.  

 



12.  Human Rights Implications  
12.1  This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 

interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the 
aims sought to be realised.  

 
13.  Equality Act 2010  
13.1  Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 

as contained within the Equality Act 2010.  

 
14.  Proactive Working  
  
 The applicant has been made aware of issues to be resolved and the LPA has worked 

to assist with resolving issues. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Nicky Powis  
Tel: 01730 234226 

email: nicky.powis@easthants.gov.uk 
 

Appendices  Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this 
Application 

 
SDNPA Consultees  

 
Background 
Documents 
 

 
 
 

 
Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 
 
 
The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 
 
Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status 
Plans - Proposed site layout P.001 A 01.03.2017 Approved 
Plans - Pub plans existing 
and proposed 

P.004 A 01.03.2017 Approved 

Plans - Proposed access 
arrangements and visibility 
splays 

2016/3242/00
2 

 30.03.2017 Superseded 

Plans - Proposed access 2016/3242/00  30.03.2017 Approved 

mailto:nicky.powis@easthants.gov.uk


arrangements and visibility 
splays 

3 

Miscellaneous - CIL forms   30.03.2017 Approved 
Miscellaneous - Viability 
Study dated March 2017 

  30.03.2017 Approved 

Plans - Proposed Access 
arrangements and visibility 
splays 

2016/3242/00
2 

A 12.04.2017 Approved 

Application Form - 
Application form 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Design and access 
statement 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment 

0892.BJHDE
C16 

 20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Landscape and Visual 
Impact Appraisal 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Technical note 

MACP/16/32
42/TN01 

 20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Planning statement 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Statement of Community 
Involvement 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Extract System Report 

CPC-REP  20.12.2016 Approved 

Application Documents - 
Ecological Assessment 

  20.12.2016 Approved 

OS Extract - Location plan L.001  20.12.2016 Approved 
OS Extract - Existing block 
plan 

P.002  20.12.2016 Approved 

OS Extract - Proposed block 
plan 

P.003  20.12.2016 Approved 

OS Extract - Proposed site 
layout 

P.001  20.12.2016 Superseded 

Plans - Floor area 
comparison 

SK10  20.12.2016 Approved 

Plans - Pub floor plans - 
existing and proposed 

P.004  20.12.2016 Superseded 



Plans - Pub elevations - 
existing and proposed 

P.005  20.12.2016 Approved 

Plans - Proposed dwellings 
floor plans 

P.006 A 06.01.2017 Approved 

Plans - Proposed dwellings - 
elevations and garage plans 

P.007  20.12.2016 Approved 

Plans - Tree Survey and root 
Constraints plan 

BHJ01/02  20.12.2016 Approved 

Plans - Tree protection plan BHJ03/04  20.12.2016 Approved 
 
Reasons - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
  



SDNP Part 2 item 2 The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Block plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SDNP Part 2 item 2 The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 

 

 

Proposed North elevation to The Street 

 

 

 

Proposed south elevation 

 

 



SDNP Part 2 item 2 The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 

 

 

Proposed west elevation 

 

 

Proposed east elevation of The Cedars 

 



SDNP Part 2 item 2 The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 

 

 

Front elevation of houses 1, 2 and 3 

 

 

 

 

Garden elevation 

 

  



SDNP Part 2 item 2 The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, GU34 4PB 

 

 

Side elevation of House 3 

 

 

 

 

Proposed House 1 side elevation 


	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	8.(i) SDNP/16/03778/FUL - 14 /14a Chapel Street, Petersfield, Hampshire, GU32 3DP
	8.(ii) SDNP/16/06316/FUL - The Cedars, The Street, Binsted, Alton, Hampshire, GU34 4PB

